
UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC 
AND 
SOCIAL COUNCIL 

Distr. 
GENERAL 

E/CN.4/1983/SR.10 
8 February 1983 

ENGLISH 
Original : FRENCH 

COMMISSION ON HUMAN.RIGHTS 

Thirty-ninth session 

. SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 10th MEETING 

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 

on Monday, 7 February 1983, at 3 P-f". 

Chairman : Mr. OTUNNU (Uganda) 

• CONTENTS 

The rights of peoples to self-determination and i t s application to peoples under 
colonial or alien domination or foreign occupation (continued) 

This record i s subject to correction. 

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages. They should 
be set forth in a memorandum and also incorporated in a copy of the record. They 
should be sent within one week of the date of this document to the O f f i c i a l Records 
Editing Section, room E.6IO8, Palais des Nations, Geneva. 

Any corrections to the records of the meetings of this session w i l l be 
consolidated in a single corrigendum, to be issued sho'rtly after the ..end of 
the session. 

GE.83-15208 



E/CN.4/1983/SR.10 
page 2 

The meeting was called to order at 3.10 p.m. 

THE RIGHT OF PEOPLES TO SELF-DETERMINATION AND ITS APPLICATION TO PEOPLES UNDER 
COLONIAL OR ALIEN DOMINATION OR FOREIGN OCCUPATION (agenda item 9) (continued) 
(E/CN.4/1983/2 and Add.l; E/CN.4/1983/12; E/CN.4/1983/13;. ST/HR/SER.A/14) 

1. Mr. TAN KOON SAN (Observer for Malaysia) said that hé shared the view expressed 
by the observer for Indonesia that the question of East Timor did not arise. 
Recent events had shown that a laudable process of decolonization and national 
reintegration was taking place. The international community should not question 
processes of decolonization, but should support them. In the case in question, 

the reintegration of East Timor, where the people were culturally and ethnically 
kith and kin of the Indonesian nation, was a natural part of the just struggle 
waged by Indonesia for national reunification and independence. Hundreds of years 
previously, with wanton and total disregard for human rights and national and 
ethnic aspirations, and with no attempt being made to provide the peoples of 
South-East Asia with any assemblance of self-determination, the colonial Powers 
entered the region, which they divided amongst themselves indiscriminately. 
Population groups with similar cultural and ethnic origins were divided by 
colonial administrative frontiers. Such was the situation in East Timor. By 
condemning the national reintegration of East Timor with the Indonesian nation, 
the international community would be condemning a l l anti-colonial struggles, in 
particular those of the former Portuguese colonies. 

2. Consequently, the Commission would be wrong to debate the issue, as the people 
of East Timor had, over the past six years, consistently demonstrated their 
satisfaction with l i v i n g in independence through reintegration. Any efforts from 
the outside to impose any other procedure of self-determination on the people of 
East Timor would constitute flagrant interference in the internal affairs of 
Indonesia,.would infringe the fundamental right of the Indonesian people to 
determine their own national course and would be detrimental to the interests of 
the people of East Timor who for some years had enjoyed agreeable p o l i t i c a l and 
socio-economic development in the context of Indonesian national development. 
Accordingly, the Commission should reject entirely draft resolution 1982/20 
submitted by tne Sub-Commission. 

3. Mr, RAJKUMAR (Pax Romana) drew attention to the situation in East Timor, a 
small island at the eastern extremity of the Sunda chain, with a mixed population 
of Malays and Melansians, The people of East Timor were heirs to a history of 
their own and, since the events of 1974, had aspired to the exercise of their right 
to self-determination. In spite of United Nations resolutions stating what should 
be done to enable the people to achieve that goal, the situation had been 
deteriorating. The Commission was answerable for the people of East Timor, as i t 
was for a l l suffering peoples of the world. 

4. While infortriation on East Timor was limited, i t had been learned late i n 1979 
that conditions there were worse than in Biafra and potentially as serious as in 
Cambodia, with children being the f i r s t to suffer from food shortages. The 
occupation forces, whose offensive of July - September 198I had been particularly 
devastating, had carried out movements of population. Suspects were not permitted 
to move about freely or cultivate the land. The forcible "regroupments" of 
population had caused food problems, and a part of the population had become 
dependent on external aid. The population of East Timor had been systematically 
denied freedom of expression, association, assembly and movement. The cycle of 
violence must stop so that the people of East Timor could exercise their rights. 



E/CÎT.4/1985/SR.10 
page 3 

5. He endorsed draft resolution 1 9 8 2 / 2 O , as well as the resolutions adopted Ъу the 
General Assembly at i t s most recent session (37/42 and 3 7 / 4 3 ) . 

6. Mr. SOFFER (Observer f o r Israel) said that the unrestrained h o s t i l i t y of the 
statements made by Arab delegations reflected the recalcitrance v/hich characterised 
the attitude of the Arab camp i n denying Israel's r i g h t to e x i s t . Despite the fact 
that they had exercised t h e i r r i g h t to self-determination i n 21 independent States, 
the Arabs continued to launch vjars of aggression against I s r a e l , the only national 
home of the Jewish people, which was equivalent i n area to only four f i f t h s of 
one per cent of a l l the Arab countries. 

7. The Arab States had spent more than 60 b i l l i o n d o l l a r s on miilitary equipment 
during the past seven years, but had f a i l e d to provide for the v/elfare of the 
Palestinian Arab refugees, v/hom they exploited i n th e i r p o l i t i c a l struggle against 
I s r a e l , whereas Israel had integrated one m i l l i o n Arabs. 

8 . I t was not by the denial of the right of the Jewish people to self-determination 
that peace v.'ould be achieved i n the Middle-East. Just as 50 years e a r l i e r , v/hen a 
notorious p o l i t i c i a n , v/hose h a t e - f i l l e d speeches had been considered pure rhetoric, 
had risen to pov/er i n Germany and had eventually plunged the world into v;ar and 
devastation by implementing h i s p o l i c y of systematic a n n i h i l a t i o n of the Jewish people, 
thus.Yasser Arafat was currently advocating the l i q u i d a t i o n of zionism and the Jev/ish 
State. That goal v/as attested to i n the National Covenant of the PLO, v/hich i t s e l f 
must not be dismissed as pure rhetoric. 

9. Hinetv?- per cent of Pal e s t i n i a n Arabs were currently l i v i n g within the confines 
of v/hat^ u n t i l 1 9 2 2 , had been knov/n as Palestine, v/hich currently comprised the States 
of Israel and Jordan. There was absolutely no room f o r two States i n the narrow 
s t r i p of land betv/een the River Jordan and the Mediterranean Sea. An a r t i f i c i a l 
State set up i n that area would not be v/iable. Moreover, such a State v/ould serve 
as a base of operations aimed at the destruction of I s r a e l . Israel would not 
tolerate the i n s t a l l a t i o n of sophisticated weaponry only a few kilometres from i t s 
main urban centres. 

10. The Camp David o.ccords offered the Palestinians of Judea, Samaria and Gaza real 
and effective autonomy for the f i r s t time i n t h e i r historj'-. Peace could be achieved 
i n a climate of confidence and co-existence. That was the key to a comprehensive and 
just solution to the Arab-Israeli c o n f l i c t . Since i t s inception, the State of Israel 
had had one goal - to l i v e i n peace with i t s neighbours. The abandonment of Sinax 
v/as proof of the enormous concessions made by Israel i n i t s quest for peace. Yet 
only Egypt had taken the outstretched hand. Was i t not time for the rest of the 
Arab countries to follow suit? 

1 1 . In the l i g h t of the statement by the representative of Senegal at an e a r l i e r 
meeting, he wished to issue a personal i n v i t a t i o n to the representative of Senegal 
to v i s i t the t e r r i t o r i e s administered by I s r a e l , which regularly received, missions 
sent by international organizations. The representative of Senegal v/ould then 
discover that he had been incorrect i n stating that 60 -per cent of the administered 
t e r r i t o r i e s had been expropriated f o r Jev/ish settlement. In f a c t , less than 
5 per cent-of that land had. been allocated for e x i s t i n g and planned settlements, 

1 2 . The mandate, a c t i v i t i e s and reports of the Special Committee a l l served to 
demonstrate i t s profoimdly a n t i - I s r a e l i bias. The Special Committee was t o t a l l y 
lacking i n o b j e c t i v i t y , and i t s contentions were e n t i r e l y groundless. The l i v i n g 



E/CN.4/I9Q5/SH«IO 
page 4 

standards and the h-uman rights s i t u a t i o n of the inhabitants of the administered 
t e r r i t o r i e s had improved s i g n i f i c a n t l y since 196?• The population enjoyed rights 
and could a v a i l themselves of j u d i c i a l remedies as i n no other neighbouring country. 
In i t s administration, Israel scrupulously adhered to international h-umanitarian norms. 

13« The Fourth Geneva Convention was not applicable to the eituation i n the 
administered t e r r i t o r i e s , because'Jordan had never been the legitimate sovereign 
according to international law. Hovjever, the requirements of that Convention were 
s t r i c t l y observed, as i f Israel was bound by them. Proper interpretation of 
a r t i c l e 49 of that Convention, led to the conclusion that, i n viev; of the context i n 
which the Convention had been drafted, I s r a e l i settlements were i n compliance with i t s 
requirements. There had been neither f o r c i b l e transfers or displacements of the 
indigenous population. On the contrarj'-, since 19б7, the Palestinian Arab population 
had increased s i g n i f i c a n t l y and under Israel's family r e u n i f i c a t i o n programme, almost 
50,000 Arabs had been able to return home. 

14. The ove™helming magority of Jewish settlements had. been established on public 
and State land. In addition, since 1977> only 0.01 per cent of the land had been 
expropriated f o r Jewish settlements. In the exceptional cases where expropriation 
had been unavoidable, the landlords had been properly compensated. Although Jewish 
inhabitants i n those areas constituted only 3 per cent of the t o t a l population, they 
were condemned for l i v i n g among Arabs because they were Jews. That overtly r a c i s t 
attitude was no different from that of the Nazis viho had attempted to create an агяа 
that was free of a l l Jews. 

15. Why should Arabs and Jews not l i v e together? Strong soc i a l and economic bonds 
existed betv;een the 650,000 I s r a e l i Arabs and t h e i r Jewish compatriots. Co-existence 
was an essential ingredient of genuine peace and co-operation. 

16. lir. 201LER (pax C h r i s t i International) said that his statement would deal mainly 
vjith the effects of the invasion of East Timor by Indonesian forces on 
7 December 1975» on the human rights s i t u a t i o n i n that t e r r i t o r y . That invasion 
had been p a r t i c u l a r l y b r u t a l , and the ensuing war had exacted a high death t o l l . 
According to a census carried out by the diocese of D i l i i n 1974> the population at 
that, time had stoc;' at almost 690,000, spread over an area of 18,990 square kilometreb. 
In October 1 9 7 8 , hovjever, a census carried, out by a senior Indonesian o f f i c i a l had 
arrived at a figure of only 329yOOO. While more than 100,000 persons were known to 
have l e f t the mountains where they had taken refuge since the census of 1978> oome 
250,000 Timorese were s t i l l unaccounted f o r . 

17. The Indonesian armed forces had perhaps encountered unexpected resistance by 
FEETILIN, a l i b e r a t i o n movement which had proclaimed the independence of the t e r r i t o r y 
on 28 November 1975 and enjoyed very widespread роргйаг support. That would 
explain the succession of Indonesian offensives which had ended i n massacres, 
summary executions and the destruction of v i l l a g e s . A report by the Australian'. 
parliamentary group concerned with foreign a f f a i r s dated 1978> bad concluded that 
the forced integration of East Timor i n Indonesia was assuming genocidal proportions. 

18. Tlie large number of victims'could be explained by the strategy employed by the 
Indonesian m i l i t a r y authorities v;hich had attempted to separate the population from 
the FRETILIN forces through forced displacements, with tens of thousands of people 
then being placed i n strategic v i l l a g e s , which were l i k e vast concentration camps 
where famine and epidemics were r i f e . 

19. A cry of alarm had been raised at the end of 1978. 1979 had been catastrophic 
and, at the end of 1982, the s i t u a t i o n had been just as disturbing. 



E/GN.4/1983/SR»10 
page 5 

2 0 . More than 200,000 Timorese, almost a t h i r d o f the population, had already paid 
for the invasion of t h e i r country hy Indonesian forces with the i r l i v e s . I t was 
high time, therefore, to take further measures to hring the genocide to an end. From 
a s t r i c t l y humanitarian point of view, the only way to achieve that goal would he for 
the 'Indonesians to leave, since the ravages were caused mainly Ъу the policy of forced 
integration which had destroyed a l l l o c a l structures. In the short-termyhowever, the 
Commission on Human Rights could help to a l l e v i a t e the suffering, f i r s t l y , Ъу 
requesting the Indonesian Governnient to agree to ailov/ experts of humanitarian and 
aid organizations to enter East Timor, secondly Ъу appointing a special rapporteur 
or entrustin^g the secretariat with the task of carrying out a study of the human rights 
s i t u a t i o n i n East Timor and, t h i r d l y Ъу including the question i n the agenda of the -
f o r t i e t h session of the Commission. , 

2 1 . lîr. SUTRESNA (Observer f o r Indonesia) said i t was unfortunate that Indonesia, 
which was d i r e c t l y concerned with the so-called question of East Timor, had not been 
informed that the Sub-Commission on the Prevention of Discrimination and Protection 
of Minorities had been interested i n discussing the question i n September 1982. I f 
i t had been so informed, the Indonesian Government would have provided the data 
necessary to enable the Sub-Gommission to take a bala.nced view. In fact, he v/ondered 
how such a p a r t i a l draft l o s o l u t i o n (E/CN.4/1985/4, chapter I, section A, V I I , page 6) 
could have been adopted by the Sub-Commission vihose members were known f o r t h e i r 
impartial judgement. The Sub-Commission should not have pronounced i t s e l f without 
hearing the viev/s of a l l sides, p a r t i c u l a r l y Indonesia. 

22^ The text of the draft resolution had many flaws. Because of the l i m i t e d time 
available, he would simply ref e r members of the Commission to the note verbale from 
tha Permanent Mission of the Republic of Indonesia (E/C1T.4/1983/42) and go very 
quickly over the draft resolution paragraph by paragraph. 

25. The provision contained i n paragraph 1, which had been taken from 
General Assembly resolution 36/5О, no longer appeared i n the resolution on the 
question of East Timor adopted by the General Assemibly at i t s l a s t session, f o r the 
simple reason that more and more countries recognized the fact that, i n 1976, the 
people of East Timor had already exercised the i r right to self-determination and 
independence by requesting integration VJIüh Indonesia, The issue of self-determination 
had been relevant when the people of East Timor had been under the yoke of Portuguese 
colonialism f o r some 400 years. At the time of decolonization i n 1975? Portugal had 
favoured a small party against the majority of the population. When the sit u a t i o n 
had got out of hand, Portugal had chosen to run av/ay from i t s r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s , 
leaving the t e r r i t o r y i n chaos, but not before leaving weapons for FRETILIH, thus 
enabling i t to foment c i v i l war. After the defeat of F R E T I L U I , the people of 
East Timor had chosen, i n exercise of the i r right to self-determination, to request 
integration \fith Indonesia, the country v/ith v/hich they v/ere united by h i s t o r i c a l 
and cultural t i e s , but from_ v/hich they had been separated during the colonial era.. 
According to General Assem.bly resolution I54I ( X V ) , a Hon Self-Governing Territory 
could achieve independence by becoming a separate independent State, by entering into 
an association with another State, or by integrating v/ith an independent State. 
However, the text under consideration contained no reference to that resolution, thus 
prejudicing the rig h t of the people to choose t h e i r ov/n form of independence, as 
recognized by international lav/ and the practice of States, That was certainly an 
unacceptable diktat to the people of East Timor, and thus s u f f i c i e n t reason to 
reject the draft resolution. 



E/CN.4/19S3/SR.10 
page б 

24. The text of paragraph 2 of the draft resolution was also based on a part of the 
1981 General Assembly resolution which no longer appeared i n the 1982 version. The 
people of East Timor, abandoned by the Portugese colonial Power, had chosen 
integration with Indonesia, i n accordanoe mth the relevant resolutions of the 
General Assembly, i n p a r t i c u l a r resolutions I514 (xv), I54I (XV) and 2б25 (xXV), In 
May 1982, the people of East Timor had participated i n the general elections held i n 
Indonesia to choose t h e i r own representatives to the national and provincial Houses 
of Representatives, I t was an i l l u s i o n to think that the people of East Timor vrould 
agree to rel i n q u i s h what they had v/on, namely independence through integration. 

25, With regard to paragraph 3 of the draft resolution, which, a^.in, no longer 
appeared i n the 1982 General Assembly resolution, i t should be noted that the process 
of integration of East Timor into Indonesia had talcen place i n complete accordance 
with the relevant united Hâtions resolutions. Various meetings had been held between 
the f i v e p o l i t i c a l parties existing i n East Timor, the Portuguese Government and 
Indonesia, FRETILIN, which had just been established and v/anted complete 
independence f o r East Timor, had been the Only party to boycott those meetings. After 
the c i v i l v/ar, the four other parties had asked f o r integration with Indonesia, 
S t i l l i n .connection with paragraph 3, vihich dealt with co-operation v/ith the 
united Nations, P r i n c i p l e IX (b) of General Assembly resolution I54I (XV) stated 
c l e a r l y that, regarding the process of decolonization throxogh integration with an 
independent State, the United Nations could, when i t deemed necessary, supervize the 
process. However, i n 197^, the Provisional Government of East Timor and the 
Indonesian Government had actually i n v i t e d the United Nations to participate i n the 
process, but i n vain. Consequently, once self-detennination had culminated i n 
integration, the problem no longer existed. Otherwise, i t would mean that the 
exercise of the rig h t to self-determination by the people of East Timor was considered 
i n v a l i d , vrhich would be unacceptable. Moreover, the people of East Timor had 
suffered enough vio l a t i o n s of human rights and fundamental freedoms i n 4OO years of 
Portuguese co l o n i a l administration. The return of Portugal as the administering 
Power was not only l e g a l l y inappropriate, but also u n r e a l i s t i c and unacceptable, and 
could only result i n nev/ upheavals f o r the people of East Timor. 

26. In paragraph.24 of the draft resolution, the Sub-Commission f a i l e d to reveal what 
was meant by "suffering" and by "situation now pre v a i l i n g " . In r e a l i t y , the reverse 
was true, as c l e a r l y shovm by the reports and conclusions of international agencies 
and organizations such as ШШСР, UNICEF and ICRC, as well as by members of the 
diplomatic corps and press correspondents who had v i s i t e d East Timor. Contrary to 
what was said by the Sub-Commission, most of them had noted the serious ef f o r t s of 
the Indonesian Government and the East Timor Provincial Government to develop the 
t e r r i t o r y , p a r t i c u l a r l y i n the areas of education, public health, public works, 
housing, agriculture, i r r i g a t i o n and communications. He cited a number of eye-witness 
accounts which bore out his assertions. 

27, With regard to paragraph 5 of the draft resolution, i t was d i f f i c u l t to believe 
that the drafters of the text were unaware that, for ye r s , a number of international 
agencies and organizations such as UNHCR, UNICEF, ICRC and the Catholic Relief 
Services had been v i s i t i n g East Timor and had been doing excellent work there. That 
indicated i n s u f f i c i e n t Icnowledge of the s i t u a t i o n , possibly because the 
Sub-Commission may have omitted to v e r i f y the information which i t had received, 



E/CN.4/1983/SR.10 
page 7 

28, I t was obvious that the draft resolution prepared by the Sub-Commission was the. 
result of work vrhich duplicated the f m c t i o n entrusted to the Fourth Committee of the 
Genei-al Assembly. More importantly¡, the draft had been formulated i n haste, mthout 
s u f f i c i e n t information op the situation i n East Timor, and had probably been drafted 
without any serious study or discussion, and probably vrith malicious intent on the 
part of some people outside the Sub-Commission, 

29- The people of East Timor formed part of the people of Indonesia and were 
engaged on the task of developing t h e i r t e r r i t o r y vrithin the context of the 
development programme of Indonesia as a vrhole. Since integration i n 1976, the 
Indonesian Government had channelled some f?US 225 m i l l i o n into the development of 
East Timor and, f o r the f i s c a l year 1982-1985 the budget for the .development of the 
t e r r i t o r y was approximately $ÜS 83 m i l l i o n . 

30, In conclusion, f o r the reasons v/nich he had eзфlained, his delegation rejected 
the Sub-Commission's draft resolution and urged the members of the Commission to do 
the same. 

31, Mrs. GRAF (international League for the Rights and Liberation of Peoples), . 
referring to the question of the persistent v i o l a t i o n of the right of the Eritrean 
people to self-determination said that, according.to the opinion of the Permanent 
Peoples' Tribunal at i t s meeting i n Ili l a n i n .iay 1980, the Eritrean question f e l l 
within the competence of the United Nations i n respect both of the maintenance of 
international peace and security and of the obligation to ensure observance of the 
right of peoples to self-determination. 

32, In the area of peace-keeping, f o r m.ore than 20 years Ethiopian m i l i t a r y 
repression had borne dovm upon the Eritrean national l i b e r a t i o n struggle and the 
prolonged war vras ravaging the country, com.pelling thousands of persons to seek 
refuge abroad. In 1982, a povrerful m i l i t a r y offensive had been launched by the 
Ethiopian Government vrith the declared aim of eliminating Eritrean resistance. The 
f a i l u r e of that offensive confirmed once again the need to f i n d a p o l i t i c a l 
solution, which could be v a l i d only i f the right of the Eritrean people to s e l f -
determination vras respected. That right vras s t i l l being denied them, following the 
u n i l a t e r a l decision taken by Ethiopia on 14 November I962 to make E r i t r e a the 
fourteenth province of Ethiopia. 

33» That v i o l a t i o n of the international l e g a l order had created a situation which 
could only be described as "foreign domination" i n the sense of the lavr applied by 
the United Nations and of the Declaration on the Granting of Independence to Colonial 
Countries and Peoples, as had been pointed out by the Remanent Peoples' Tribunal. 
The Eritrean question could not be reduced to the dimensions of a national minority 
problem, since the population of E r i t r e a i t s e l f vras mad.e up of a wide variety of 
n a t i o n a l i t i e s who had acquired a common national conscience and had become one people 
as a result of the i r resistance against I t a l i a n colonisation, D r i t i s h administration 
and Ethiopian occupation. Nor was the struggle of the Eritrean people a secessionist 
enterprise which would be p r e j u d i c i a l to the tei>ritorial i n t e g r i t y and p o l i t i c a l unity 
of an existing State, namely Ethiopia, On the contrary, i t vras the current 
situation which constituted a v i o l a t i o n of the p r i n c i p l e of the i n v i o l a b i l i t y of the 
fr o n t i e r s inherited from colonization, a fundamental c r i t e r i o n f o r the s t a b i l i t y of 
the African continent. 



E/CN.4/1985/SR.10 
page 8 

34» The c o n f l i c t i n E r i t r e a could not he considered, therefore, as a c i v i l war or as 
an internal a f f a i r of Ethiopia. I t r e a l l y was a question of international law and 
should therefore be taken up by the international authorities. I t had been for 
that purpose that, at the t h i r t y - f i f t h session of the General Assembly i n 
September 1980, the Eritrean l i b e r a t i o n movement had submitted a memorandvim pointing 
out the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of the United Nations and c a l l i n g f o r action by the 
international community. I f peoples were to exercise t h e i r inalienable right to 
self-determination, concrete solutions must be found. Accordingly, considerable value 
should be accorded to the proposals contained i n the statement by the Eritrean 
People's Liberation Front (EPLF) of 22 November 1980, to the effect that a referendum 
should be held i n E r i t r e a under the supervision of an international committee 
recognized by both parties to the c o n f l i c t and of the competent international 
organizations. That presented real p o s s i b i l i t i e s f o r ensuring the implementation of 
an inalienable right and paving the way to peace i n the region, the s t a b i l i t y of 
f r o n t i e r s and the recognition of the sovereignty of the Eritrean people. 

55. Mr. BEING (Observer f o r Portugal) said that, as f a r as his delegation knew, 
i t was the f i r s t time that the Commission had been ca l l e d on to pronounce on the 
situation of East Timor because i t had been presented v/ith a draft resolution 
adopted by the Sub-Commission on Prevention of Discrimination and Protection of • 
Minorities at i t s t h i r t y - f i f t h session (Б/сН.4/1983/4, page 6). That resolution 
represented an i n i t i a t i v e by independent experts who had deemed i t necessary and 
important to draví the attention of the Commission i n p a r t i c u l a r to the situation 
prevailing i n East Timor, with a viev; to a l l e v i a t i n g the suffering of the Timorese 
people. Portugal was convinced that i t was because the people of East Timor had been, 
and s t i l l were being, prevented from exercising t h e i r legitimate right to s e l f -
determination that the t e r r i t o r y currently found i t s e l f i n such a serious s i t u a t i o n , 

36. S-ummarizing his country's position, he said that, f i r s t l y , Portugal had no 
t e r r i t o r i a l claim over East Timor, i t s only goal being to ensure that the process 
of decolonization took place i n accordance with international lav/. Secondly, 
Portugal had alv/ays been guided, and would continue to be guided, by s t r i c t 
observance of the results of any authentic act of self-determination which might take 
place i n East Timor, provided i t v/as recognized by the United Nations. Thirdly, 
Portugal's action was based on the f u l l acceptance of a l l resolutions adopted by the 
Security Council and General Assembly regarding East Timor since 1975« Fourthly,- • 
the solution must be found within the framev/ork of a p o l i t i c a l and legal formula 
which took accoimt of the true aspirations of the people and could be accepted by 
the United Nations. F i f t h and l a s t l y , i n addition to taking i t s own i n i t i a t i v e s , 
Portugal had the firm intention of supporting a l l other i n i t i a t i v e s which were 
designed to solve the problem. 

37" The right of the people of East Timor to self-determination had been confirmed 
by successive resolutions of the United Nations Security Council and General Assembly, 
In addition, at i t s autimrn session i n 1982, the Interparliamentary Union had adopted 
by an overwhelming majority a resolution reaffirming the right of that people to 
self-determination and condemning the use of force to prevent them exercising i t . 
Since.1974> Portugal had consistently stated that the process of self-determination 
of t e r r i t o r i e s under i t s administration should take place by exclusively peaceful 
means. Consequently, the solution of the problem of East Timor must be based on a 
process of negotiation and agreement between the parties concerned. In the l a s t 
resolution adopted by the General Assembly (37/30)? of which Portugal had been a 
sponsor for the f i r s t time, the Secretary-General of the United Nations v/as requested 
to intervene, a fact that demonstrated that Portugal v/as i n favour of dialogue. 
Moreover, the Sub-Commission noted i n i t s resolution the diplomatic e f f o r t s recently 
made by the Portuguese Government. 



E/CN .4/1985/SR . 10 
page 9 

38, U n f o r t u n a t e l y , a l a r g e p r o p o r t i o n of the i n t e r m t i o n a l community d i d not accord 
s u f f i c i e n t a t t e n t i o n to the seriousness of the s i t u a t i o n i n East Timor, L i k e the 
Sub-Commission, P o r t u g a l was grave l y concerned a t the s u f f e r i n g and v i o l a t i o n s o f 
human r i g h t s which the people of East Timor had to endijre and approved, i n 
p a r t i c u l a r , of paragraph 2 of the d r a f t r e s o l u t i o n adopted Ъу the Sub-Commission. 
P o r t u g a l could not accept i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s as r e s t r i c t i v e as that o f Indonesia which, 
while r e c o g n i z i n g t h a t the Commission was competent to d e a l w i t h human r i g h t s 
questions, a t the same time claimed t h a t i t was not competent to consider the 
question of East Timor. 

59» The r i g h t to s e l f - d e t e r m i n a t i o n vras a ftindamental human r i ^ t , without which 
peoples could e x e r c i s e the other r i g h t s and freedoms e f f e c t i v e l y . The d e n i a l to the 
people of East Timor of the e x e r c i s e of the r i ^ t to s e l f - d e t e r m i n a t i o n was the tru e 
cause of the many v i o l a t i o n s of human r i g h t s s u f f e r e d by t h a t people. Those 
v i o l a t i o n s , as w e l l as the s i t u a t i o n in East Timor, had i n e f f e c t been condemned 
repeat e d l y by the i n f o r m a t i o n media, world p u b l i c o p i n i o n and i n t e r n a t i o n a l and 
non-governmental o r g a n i z a t i o n s , i n c l u d i n g the S p e c i a l Committee on the S i t u a t i o n 
w i t h regard to the Implementation of the D e c l a r a t i o n on the Graлting of Independence 
to C o l o n i a l Cotmtries and Peoples (A/AC.IO9/715)> the World C o u n c i l of Churches and 
Amnesty I n t e r n a t i o n a l . 

4 0 . A l l of those condemnations demonstrated c l e a r l y the g r a v i t y of the problem of 
human r i o t s ' v i o l a t i o n s i n East Timor, where Indonesia p e r s i s t e d i n e x e r t i n g 
p o l i t i c a l , m i l i t a r y , s o c i a l , c u l t u r a l and r e l i g i o u s pressvires. The f a c t that the 
Commission pronounced on the question i n no way c o n s t i t u t e d i n t e r f e r e n c e i n the 
i n t e r n a l a f f a i r s of Indonesia, Indeed, a c c o r d i n g to a number of General Assembly 
r e s o l u t i o n s , i n t e r n a t i o n a l law- and, i n p a r t i c u l a r , A r t i c l e 75 of the Charter, 
Ea^t Timor was a ITon-Self-Goverrlng T e r r i t o r y . The extent of the problem of 
v i o l a t i o n s of human r i g h t s i n East Timor îvlly j u s t i f i e d the matter b e i n g taken up 
by the General Assembly and the Commission, which was conoemed s p e c i f i c a l l y w i t h 
human r i g h t s . There was not h i n g i r r e g u l a r , t h e r e f o r e , i n the Commission adopting 
a r e s o l u t i o n a l r e a d y r e f e r r e d to i n General Assembly r e s o l u t i o n 37/30» 

4 1 . His d e l e g a t i o n hoped that the Commission would adopt the d r a f t r e s o l u t i o n on 
the question of East Timor submitted to i t by the Sub-Commission. I n that regard, 
h i s d e l e g a t i o n was guided by concern f o r human s o l i d a r i t y i n respect of the people 
of East Timor and remained f u l l y prepared to co-operate a c t i v e l y w i t h a l l psurties 
concerned w i t h f i n d i n g a s o l u t i o n which genuinely took account of the i n t e r e s t s and 
c \ i l t u r a l i d e n t i t y of the people of East Timor. 

4 2 . The СНА1ШШТ gave the f l o o r to a number of delegations which had asked to 
ex e r c i s e t h e i r r i g h t of r e p l y i n connection w i t h the debate on agenda item 9» 

45» 1'̂ » BHAGAT (Ind i a ) noted t h a t the r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of P a k i s t a n had r e f e r r e d to 
Jammu and Kashmir i n h i s statement on item 9 of the agenda. As the Commission was 
aware, Jammu and Kashmir formed an i n t e g r a l p a r t of I n d i a , and the p r i n c i p l e of 
s e l f - d e t e r m i n a t i o n could not apply to p a r t of an independent and sovereign State» 
I t was a l s o w e l l known that the r i g h t to s e l f - d e t e r m i n a t i o n had a l r e a d y been 
ex e r c i s e d i n the Sta t e of Jammu and Kashmir where the p o p u l a t i o n , l i k e those of 
the other States had the r i g h t to vote f r e q u e n t l y and i n t o t a l freedom. No 
r e s o l u t i o n of the United Nations could t h e r e f o r e apply to t h ^ t S t a t e . The Simla 
Agreement of 1972 r e f e r r e d to by the r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of P a k i s t a n provided a framework 
f o r s t r e n g t h e n i n g and expanding b i l a t e r a l co-operation between the two countries and 
r e s o l v i n g t h e i r d i f f e r e n c e s by pea c e f u l b i l a t e r a l n e g o t i a t i o n s . The Government of 
I n d i a remained commi-tted to the process l a i d down i n the Simla Agreement. 



E/CN.4/1985/SR.10 
page 10 

4 4 . Mr. KHERAD (Observer f o r Afghanistan) said that he wished to reply to a number 
of delegations who had attempted to prevent the Commission from continuing i t s 
debate on the r i g h t of peoples to self-determination by d i r e c t i n g slanderous and 
unfounded allegations against A^fghanistan i n order to mask their dark designs and 
to increase tension i n Asia, the Middle East and elsewhere. Their malicious 
insinuations formed part of a vast conspirf.cy led by the United States and i t s 
reactionary and hegemonist accomplices against revolutionary Afghanistan. 

4 5 . His delegation firmly rejected those mendacious allegations. The events which 
had taken place i n A.fghanistan, including the brotherly assistance extended by the 
Soviet Union at the request of the Democratic Republic of Afghanistan, under a 
treaty of friendship signed by the two countries i n 1978 and i n accordance with'the 
Charter of the United Nations, f e l l e n t i r e l y within the sphere of i n t e r n a l and 
b i l a t e r a l a f f a i r s and by no means represented a threat to international peace and 
security. Since the f i r s t days of the A p r i l revolution, the Democratic Republic of 
Afghanistan had had to contend with aggression from outside and with nothing less 
than an undeclared war set i n motion by the United States and i t s accomplices. I f 
those c i r c l e s had not attempted to destabilise the Government of Afghanistan, 
through Pakistan, the Afghan Revolutionary Council would never have requested a 
contingent of Soviet troops. The temiporary presence of that contingent i n 
Afghanistan at the express reg^uest of the Government was intended to a s s i s t the 
Afghan ariry and people i n r e p e l l i n g outside attacks and i n defending the independence, 
t e r r i t o r i a l i n t e g r i t y and sovereignty of Afghanistan, As soon as Afghanistan could 
dispense with m i l i t a r y assistance, the Soviet contingent would withdraw. The 
Afghan Government had m-ade constructive and r e a l i s t i c proposals i n that regard, 

46. I t was also evident that Afghanistan's relations with the Soviet Union and other 
peace-loving countries, including the Muslim countries, continued to develop. The 
Soviet Union had been the f i r s t to recognize ilfghanistan's independence and to 
provide i t with assistance i n a number of areas. The friendship between the two 
countries was deep-rooted, and the i r peoples had every reason to set great store 
by'those close Ifnlcs, 

47. Afghanistan's resolute march towards true,independence, progress, justice and 
the building of a society without exploitation, the f i n a l d i s p e l l i n g of the cherished 
i l l u s i o n of the forces of imperialism and reaction that they could control 
Afghanistan and maintain t h e i r interests there represented a tragedy for the current 
United States Government and for the forces of reiiction, 

4 8 . The bombardments referred to by a number of representatives were merely yet 
another false invention and manoeuvre on the part of those c i r c l e s . On the other 
hand, no one could dispute the r e a l i t y of t h e i r own cruel aggression against the 
legitimate Government and the people of Afghanistan, or.their interference i n 
Afghanistan's i n t e r n a l a f f a i r s . In addition to enormous f i n a n c i a l a i d , the 
United States and i t s accomplices were generously providing arms to 
counter-revolutionary groups. They did not shrink from using any means to carry out 
t h e i r attacks and continued to use chemJ.cal weapons and weapons of mâ ss destruction 
prohibited by international treaties against the Afghan people, as evidenced by the 
equipment captured by the Afghan armed forces. The wax- unleashed by the United States 
and i t s accomplices against Afganistán was a conclusive example of international 
terrorism and a flagrant v i o l a t i o n of the Charter of the United Nations and of the 
norms governing international r e l a t i o n s . 

49. I t was not the f i r s t time that the Commission had been compelled to l i s t e n to 
the odious r e f r a i n of hatred and anger on the part of the American Government, wMch 
had l o s t i t s interests i n Afghanistan. Nor was i t possible to l i s t a l l . the acts of 



E/CN.4/1965/SR.10 
page 11 

aggression and crimes committed Ъу the United States. I f necessary, his delegation 
•would present the true facts concerning direct and i n d i r e c t , clandestine and overt 
interference by the United States i n the a f f a i r s of other States. 

50. In the course of the same debate, the representative of a non-governmental 
organization had also made slanderous and groundless allegations against Afghanistan. 
His delegation deplored the fact that that organization should have designated as i t s 
representa.tive an individual who had been an accomplice of every bloodthirsty regime 
i n Afghanistan. 

51. The United Kingdom was i n the habit of misleading world opinion i n order to 
conceal i t s foreign policy of aggression. The representative of that country was 
well aware that the Afghan people were determined to defend t h e i r freedom and would 
not be diverted from the path that they had freely chosen. He would do better to 
r e f l e c t on his own country's experience with regard to acts of aggression and the 
v i o l a t i o n of the righ t of peoples to self-determination, p a r t i c u l a r l y i n 
Northern Ireland and against a sovereign State of the South A t l a n t i c , 

52. F i n a l l y , his delegation also advised the representative of China to r e f l e c t on 
the lesson of his country's experience with regard to violence, aggression and 
subversion i n Asia, notably agai-nst Viet Nam, 

55. Mr. SHIFTER (United States of Atnerica) said that i t was unnecessary to reply to 
most of the accusations made against the United States, vihich were not new. 
Nevertheless, some of them called for comment. 

54. I t was easy to blame others for the d i f f i c u l t i e s which one brought upon oneself. 
So i t was with Nicaragua, In July 1979» a Government of National Reconstruction, 
supported by a broad c o a l i t i o n of p o l i t i c a l forces, had taken power after ousting 
Somoza, That Government had received support from the United States Government, 
United States private c i r c l e s , Western Governments and international f i n a n c i a l 
i n s t i t u t i o n s . However, instead of using that a.ssistance to bui l d a democratic 
society, the new Government had allowed a t o t a l i t a r i a n group to develop, so that the 
situa t i o n had deteriorated. P a r t i c u l a r l y cruel measures had been taken against the 
Miskito Indians, thousands of vjhom had fl e d the country, Nicaraguai had embarked on 
a m i l i t a r y build-up, to the detriment of i t s economy and to the point where i t 
represented a threat to neighbouring countries. As a. r e s u l t , tension had continued 
to increase. Obviously, i t was convenient to blame the United States for that 
si t u a t i o n . His delegation rejected such unfounded accusations. As early as 
A p r i l 1982, the United States Ambassador to the United Nations had had occasion to 
point out to the Security Council that the United States had assisted the Sandinista 
Government i n gaining power and had supported the economy of Nicaragua. The 
Ambassador had also reaffirmed that the United States was not i n the habit of 
in t e r f e r i n g i n the internal a f f a i r s of other States or of using force, and that i t 
respected the p r i n c i p l e of sovereignty. That did not mean that the United States 
was not prepared to defend i t s e l f or to as s i s t other countries, 

55. The representative of the Soviet Union had stated that the united States had been 
the cause of the situ a t i o n i n Afghanistan and that the Soviet army had been invited i n 
by the Afghan Government, I t would be inte r e s t i n g to know whether, i n extending that 
i n v i t a t i o n . Prime Minister Amin had also asked to be assassinated. The observer for 
Afghanistan had stated that the Afghan resistance was using chemical weapons. In so 



E/Crí.4/1983/SR.10 
page 12 

stating, he was i m p l i c i t l y admitting that chemical vjeapons were used i n Afghanistan, 
as the United States had repeatedly pointed out. I t would be for the Commission to 
decide whether such weapons were actually being used by the resistance or by the 
Soviet army. 

56. The representative of Poland had taken exception to the United States 
delegation's remark that the P o l i s h Government had acted under duress w h e n i t had 
dissolved the trene union S o l i d a r i t y . At an e a r l i e r meeting, he had referred to v/hat 
had become known as the p r i n c i p l e of ''limited sovereignty", whereby a countrj'- which 
was within the Soviet orbit must not engage i n any a c t i v i t i e s which the Soviet 
leadership considered contrary to the laws of s o c i a l developm.ent. In the cases of 
Hungary, Czechoslovakia and Afghanistan, the Soviet Union had also m.ade i t quite 
clear that, i f necessarj^, i t s army v;ould enforce the application of the la,ws of s o c i a l 
development. 

57. According to a r t i c l e s which had appeared i n the Soviet press i n 1981, by 
allowing the P o l i s h people tc exercise the rights proclaimed i n the Universal 
Declaration of Human Rights, the P o l i s h authorities were v i o l a t i n g the laws of s o c i a l 
development. I t was safe to assume that that point of view was shared by the 
Soviet and P o l i s h leadership. In case those allusions were not understood, the 
Soviet Union had organized n i l i t a , r y exercises close to the P o l i s h border. 
General Jaruzelski had understood the message cl e a r l y and had stepped up repressive 
measures. 

58. The representative of Poland had aJso said that the United States told other 
countries what to dc. Personally, he Bom.etimes wished that that was actually the 
case, but unfortunately i t waa not. 

59. Mr. THUONG (Observer for Viet lTa„m) rejected e n t i r e l y the tissue of l i e s and 
slander uttered by the representative of China i n order to heighten tension and to 
create a diversion. The representative, of China had f a l s e l y accused Yie t Ntun of 
genocide, while omitting to maïœ any mention of the genocide comm.itted by Pol Pot, 
Vihich he hoped to reimpose. In the viev; of the representative of China, the people 
of Kampuchea v;ere represented by gangs cf crimineds a,nd not by the fi v e m i l l i o n 
Kampucheans currently p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n the reconstruction of th e i r country, 

60. For years, foreign v i s i t o r s ha.d noted the progress achieved by the vaJiant 
Kampucheap people, together viith the p o l i c y of Viet Nam and the close relationship 
existing betv/een-Vietnamese forces and ca.droG and the l o c a l popula/bicn and 
authorities. Viho v/as siaeaking the tr^ath, the rer^ressntative of China, or these 
honest observers? The m.ain thing v/as to determine whether China v/as actua,lly 
threatening the countries of Indochina and South-East Asia. 

61. China's interference i n the three Indochinese countries г/аз not a ney 
development. The reason why China ha.d openly dem.onstrated i t s h o s t i l i t y towards 
Yiet Nam i n 1975 гуав because the l i b e r a t i o n of South Yie t Nam. had disrupted plans 
for a Sino-American agreement concluded i n the celebrated Shanghi comoauniqué, and 
because China had not forgiven Y i e t Nam for having an independent foreign policy. 
I t was for that reason that, i n A p r i l 1978, China had conjured up the so-Ccvlled 
"Hoa" a f f a i r which was a r e p e t i t i o n of the t a c t i c s already used i n the 1950s and 
1960s against Bvirma and Indonesia. That had been follov/ad by a pincer v-ar against 
Yiet Nam. and the current war of a t t r i t i o n against the tliree countries of Indochina, 
China s t i l l proclaimed i t s e l f ready to give Yiet Налк a "second lesson", and more tha,n 
400,000 of i t s soldiers v/ere massed on the borders of Y i e t Nam, 



E/CÏÏ.4/1983/SR.10 
page 13 

62. In the past four years alone, ClrLna had sent 20,000 m i l i t a r y advisers to the 
Kampuchea of Pol Pot. At the beginning of 1979, i t had thrown 600,000 troops 
against North Viet Nam, Those Chinese forces had had to withdraw from Kampuchea 
and Viet Nam i n circumstances known to be very dishonourable. In 1983, Chinese 
troops were s t i l l occupying the Vietnamese archipelago of Hoang Sa, and more than 
a dozen points along the Chinese-Vietnamese border. Recently, the 
Vietnamese Government had returned to the Chinese authorities m i l i t a r y scouts and 
spies captured on i t s t e r r i t o r y . 

65. The representative of China protested that his country's intentions with 
regard to the countries of South-East Asia were honourable. According tc the 
Monde diplomatique of February 1983, China had alvrays been present i n 
South-East Asia, which had been a t r a d i t i o n a l sphere of influence of the 
Middle Empire. The Chinese s t i l l entertained ideas of sovereignty over 
South-East Asia. Issue No. 24 of the p e r i o d i c a l Hérodote contained a Chinese map, 
republished i n 1971, i n which the Chinese t e r r i t o r i e s annexed by the imperialists 
included Indochina, Thailand, Бгшпа and I'lalaysia. Current Chinese maps showed 
almost a l l the maritime area beti/een the countries of South-East Asia, as f a l l i n g 
within the t e r r i t o r i a l waters of China. The Far Eastern Economic Review of 
3 February 1983 recalled China's m i l i t a r y confrontations with India, Viet Nam 
and Mongolia and i t s disputes of varying degrees of gravity with South Korea, Japan, 
Taiwan, Viet Nam and, p o t e n t i a l l y , Malaysia and the Philippines. 

64. Mention could also be made of the use of immigrants of Chinese o r i g i n , the 
manipulation of ethnic minorities, the creation of small pseudo-revolutionary 
groups, the organization of armed bands, g u e r r i l l a a c t i v i t i e s and coups d'état 
such as that which had taken place i n Indonesia i n I 9 6 9 . Wiat country i n the 
region had not been subjected to such ta c t i c s of subversion and d e s t a b i l i z a t i o n . 
Had the Chinese Prime Minister recently been able to assure the ASEIAN countries 
that a l l assistance to organizations owing allegiance to China had been stopped? 
Judging from the obstinacy with which the Peking axithorities kept a l i v e the 
p o l i t i c a l coirps'e of Pol Pot, none of those cpuntries could f e e l safe from the 
appearance on i t s s o i l , or i n a Chinese province, of a s e l f - s t y l e d "government i n 
e x i l e " or "people's l i b e r a t i o n army". For that reason, the p o l i t i c a l leaders 
and public opinion i n the countries of South-East Asia vrere becoming increasingly 
av/are of the r e a l i t y of the Chinese threat, p a r t i c u l a r l y since China could now 
modernize i t s armed forces v/ith the aid of Washington. 

65. I t was understandable that Chinese propaganda should stress the so-called 
"Vietnamese threat" to the countries of. ASEAN, which i t v/ished to dissociate 
from the countries of Indochina. Fortunately, i t had not succeeded and the two 
groups of countries had a better understanding of t h e i r mutual int e r e s t s . 

6 6 . I f China had had no s e l f i s h designs on the countries of Indochina, i t would 
have ceased i t s opposition to the reconstruction of Kampuchea and would agree to 
res-ume negotiations v/ith Viet Nam or to open new ones v/ithout any preconditions. 
On the occasion of the spring f e s t i v a l , China could c a l l a halt to a l l armed 
a c t i v i t y along .the border or order i t s troops to observe a truce. Those were 
tvio modest proposals which v/ould help to reduce tension and to establish a climate 
of confidence between the two coimtries. Viet Nam and Indochina had knov/n periods 
of peaceful co-existence, the longest l a s t i n g three centuries. A return to normal 
relations was therefore quite f e a s i b l e . Viet Nam was working towards i t and 
could be happy i f China associated i t s e l f v/ith those e f f o r t s . 



E/C3N.4/1985/SE.10 
page 14 

Gl. Mr. ZORIN (Union of Soviet S o c i a l i s t Republics) said that, i n his statement 
on 4 February, the representative of the United States had slandered the 
Soviet Union and other.countries. I t was grotesque to state, as the American 
delegation had done, that the United States respected the p r i n c i p l e of 
non-interference i n the i n t e r n a l a f f a i r s of other States, while engaging i n 
provocative attacks which must be condemned. The Soviet Republics, including 
Latvia, Estonia and Lithuania, had determined t h e i r ovm future f r e e l y and had xmited 
v o l u n t a r i l y . As f o r the concept of "limited sovereignty" concocted by the 
American Govemnent, i t did not e x i s t . Tlie United States had become a master at 
i n t e r f e r i n g i n the in t e r n a l a f f a i r s of other covmtries and hegemony, as was shovm 
by i t s attitude towards Iran, the Dominican Republic,. E l Salvadoi- and Chile. I t 
attempted to slander the Soviet Union which was one of the foremost peace-loving 
and progress-loving countries. 

68. The current American Government had launched a veritable crusade against 
socialism and fabricated falsehoods with regard to the s o c i a l i s t countries. The 
Soviet Union was engaged i n exposing those falsehoods and p i l l o r y i n g t h e i r authors 
as slanderers. 

69. lihen the American delegation had spoken on the s i t u a t i o n i n the I s r a e l i 
occupied Arab t e r r i t o r i e s and on the question of the exercise of the r i g h t to 
self-determination, the Commission might have expected to hear some constructive 
remarks concerning, f o r example, Palestine, Namibia and other t e r r i t o r i e s . But 
the representative of the United States had evaded a l l questions concerning the 
exercise of the rig h t to self-determination, thus leading to the conclusion either 
that he had nothing to say on that subject, or that he vras perhaps himself 
opposed to the machinations of his Government. He had said nothing about Israel's 
use of fragmentation bombs against the Arab population of the occupied t e r r i t o r i e s ^ 
the s i t u a t i o n i n Puerto Rico, G-uantanamo and Micronesia, the fact, that his 
Government was attempting to dominate sovereign States by including them i n a l l 
sorts of spheres, the 1,500 American m i l i t a r y bases situated throiighout the world, 
or the I s r a e l i attacks on Lebanon. In January 1985, the United States Government 
had set up a new central m i l i t a r y command covering an area which inclv'ded 
19 sovereign States, without asking the peoples of those States vrhether they v;ished 
to be included i n that sphere of railita,ry influence. According to the 
Brookings I n s t i t u t e , the United States had engaged i n m i l i t a r y intervention' 215 
times since the end of the Second World War. The new central command would enable 
i t to continue that policy'of intervention. 

70. The aim of the Commission was precisely to take account of such actions i n 
order to eliminate centres of himan rights v i o l a t i o n s and the vestiges of 
colonialism, neo-colonialism, racism and hegemonism. 

71. Ifcs. SLAMOYA (Observer f o r Czechoslovakia) noted that the United States 
was concerned with regard to the future of Czechoslovakia. Her delegation had, 
on a number of occasions, explained to the United States delegation what the 
s i t u a t i o n was i n Czechoslovakia, p a r t i c u l a r l y since I 9 6 8 . The Czechoslovak people 
were happy to have been liberated from capitalism and did not wish to retxma to i t . 
•Even though, as vras well knovm, the United States was unhappy vrith t h a t s t a t e of 
a f f a i r s , i t must accept i t . The United States delegation should stop spreading 
slanders and i n t e r f e r i n g i n the i n t e r n a l a f f a i r s of Czechoslovakia. I t would be 
preferable i f the United States Government endeavoured to solve i t s own problems 
of unemployment, i n f l a t i o n and r a c i a l discrimination. 



E/CN.4/1983/SR.10 
page 15 

72' Mr. К/ШЖй. (Observer f o r Democratic Kampuchea) said that, i n mid-1982, the 
Tietnamese" Government, through i t s puppet i n Phnom Penh, had signed a so-called 
treaty conceding to Viet Nam large portions of Cambodian t e r r i t o r i a l W3.ters, just 
prior to the f i n a l phase of the Conference on the Law of the Sea, held i n Jamaica. 
The c o a l i t i o n Governjiient of Democratic Kampuchea had published a statement 
a l e r t i n g international opinion to any maneouvre of that kind, by the Vietnamese 
authorities. 

75. I t v/as well known that, v/ithout the presence of 250,000 Vietnamese soldiers, 
the puppet regime i n s t a l l e d i n Phnom Penh-v/ould not l a s t one day and that, without 
foimidable Soviet aid (US ,|5 m i l l i o n per day), Vietnam would have been unable to 
commit i t s acts of aggression. Moreover, v/ithout that aggression, the tragedy of 
the peoples of that region v/ould not have taken place and peace and s t a b i l i t y i n 
that part of the v/orld would not have been threatened as they currently v/ere. 
Like the people of Afghanistan, the peoi^le of Democratic Kampuchea v/ere struggling 
courageously to v/in respect f o r th e i r r i g h t to self-determination, which the 
international community and the Commission continued to defend. 

74« Mr. KIS (Observer f o r Hung3.ry) deplored the fact tha.t the representative of the 
Uiiited States of America had referred to Hungary i n connectio.n v/ith item 9' There 
was no item on the agenda which concerned Hmigary, and accordingly no member of the 
Commission had the r i g h t to refer to the internal affaii's of that country i n ацу 
context v/hatsoever, 

75» Mr. OULD-ROUIS (observer f o r A l g e r i a ) , r e f e r r i n g to a statement made by the 
observer f o r Morocco, said that Algeria, while concerned with the c o n f l i c t i n 
Western Sahara, since i t involved two s i s t e r peoples, was being waged on i t s o\m 
borders and threatened the security and s t a b i l i t y of the region, was not a party 
to the c o n f l i c t i t s e l f . The two parties had been clearly i d e n t i f i e d by the 
United Nations (resolutions 36/46 and 37/28) as Morocco and the P o l i s a r i o Front. 

76,. The Western SaJiara c o n f l i c t v/as a matter of decolonization, and any attempt at 
" b i l a t e r a l i z a t i o n " i n order to resolve the situation v/ould be f u t i l e . A l geria, 
for i t s part, had consistently stated that i t had no t e r r i t o r i a l claim i n the region. 
Its position was based solely on the p r i n c i p l e s of support for authentic national 
l i b e r a t i o n movements and the defence of the r i g h t of peoples to self-determination. 
A p o l i t i c a l solution could be achieved only by negotiation between Morocco and the 
P o l i s a r i o Front. A l g e r i a remained ready to a s s i s t i n any contact between the two 
parties. 

77. SAKER (Observer for the Syrian Arab Republic) said i t was astonishing to 
hear the observer for Israel accuse the Arab States of aggression, v/hen i t was his 
own country which had been the aggressor since 1948. Quite apart from the previous 
wars, that was c l e a r l y the role that Israel had again played i n Lebanon. With 
regard to Israel's attitaide towards the Arabs, the I s r a e l i j o u r n a l i s t U r i Avneri 
had. stated that since " i t s establishment, the State of Israel has employed a p o l i c y 
of persecution and oppression against the Arab minority v/hich remained i n the 
country, making every Arab resident r e a l i z e , i n his d a i l y l i f e , that he i s no more 
than a strange unwanted element i n the coimtry who suffers from a l l sorts of 
oppression". In addition, Mr. Zvi Sheilouh, a leader of the "Ha Tehia" party, had 
written i n 1976; "instead of ti-aining Arabs on the i l l u s i o n and dream of equality, 
we must t e l l them i n a l l frankness and honestar that this State i s only a Jewish State". 
The I s r a e l i newspaper A l Hamishmar had stated: "Racial discrimination against Arabs 
existed a l l the time, but i n recent years a frank discriminatory phenomenon has 
appeared". 



E/OT,,4/1983/SR.I0 
page 16 

78. Israel had consistently disregarded the resolutions of the United Nations 'in 
i t s policy towards the occupied t e r r i t o r i e s . I t endangered international peace 
Ъу placing i t s e l f , ahove other nations and defying them, with the support of the 
United States of America. As f a r as the question of the settlements estahlishèd 
i n the occupied t e r r i t o r i e s was concerned, Israel's attitude was quite clear. I f 
peace was to return to the area, Israel must change i t s attitude and implement the 
resolutions of the United Nations Ъу withdrawing from the occupied t e r r i t o r i e s and 
allowing Palestinians to return bo thoii" homes. 

79- Mr. BARAKAT (Jordan) recalled that the I s r a e l i delegation had raised a question 
which concerned the sovereignty of the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan. In order to 
remedy the d i s t o r t i o n of the facts and the f a n c i f u l presentation of history i n 
which that delegation had indulged., he recalled that, before the F i r s t World War, 
Palestine, Transbordan, Syria and Lebanon had formed part of the Ottoman Empire. 
For example, Haifa i n Palestine had come vmder the Beirut authorities, and Salt i n 
TransJordan and Nablus i n Palestine had formed part of the same adiainistrative u n i t . 
However, the Zionists had ali-eady been attempting to colonize Palestine. In 1918, 
the United Kingdom and France had occupied the region and had dravrn the f r o n t i e r s 
of Palestine, Transbordan, Syria and Lebanon. Consequently, the facts put forward 
by the I s r a e l i delegation were distorted by the Zionist ideology. 

80. Since 1967? the United Nations had adopted a series of resolutions c a l l i n g f o r 
the implementation of the Geneva Conventions i n the Israeli-occupied t e r r i t o r i e s . 
Nevertheless, the occupying Power refused to comply and was popula.ting those 
t e r r i t o r i e s with s e t t l e r s . Israel clajjned to have carried out no transfers of., 
l o c a l populations. In that connection, he described the manner i n which' 
a g r i c u l t u r a l tovms such as Hebron and Nablus were being progressively encircled by 
Jewish settlements, established through a process of expropriation which was 
gradually turning those tovms into ghettos. That was just one example of the 
r e a l i t y gf I s r a e l i settlement. 

81. Mr. SENE (Senegal) said that i t was regrettable that the observer f o r Israel -
should have questioned the i m p a r t i a l i t y and o b j e c t i v i t y of the Special Committee to 
Investigate I s r a e l i Practices Af f e c t i n g the Human Rights of the Population of the 
Occupied T e r r i t o r i e s . The delegation of Senegal had already referred to the 
international instruments and pertinent resolutions on which the Special Committee 
had based i t s analysis of tho facts and information which i t had received, i n order 
to endow i t s conclusions with a l e g a l foundation. The Special Committee had made 
many attempts to v i s i t the occupied t e r r i t o r i e s i n order to compare the reports and 
infoiraation which i t had received with the actual conditions i n which the Arab 
populations l i v e d . However, the I s r a e l i Government had always refused, while -
granting authorizations to commissions of inquiry of ILO, Ш 0 and UNESCO. Yet the 
Special Committee was not a large body, since i t consisted solely of three j u r i s t s , 
accompanied by a few m e m b e r s of the secretariat of the Centre for Ншиап Rights. 
It must be presmed that the I s r a e l i authorities had refused because they had 
something to hide, such as the v i o l a t i o n s of human rights revealed i n the reports 
of the Special Committee i t s e l f . 

82. The observer f o r Israel had recently extended an i n v i t a t i o n which i f addressed 
to a l l members of the Special Committee indicated a change of attitude, but which, 
on 4he other hand, would be inopportune i f i t was simply an i n v i t a t i o n to engage i n 
tourism i n the occupied t e r r i t o r i e s . Moreover, the Special Committee thanked the 
Governments of Jordan and Syria which had extended every f a c i l i t y necessary to 



E/CN.4/1983/SR.10 
page 17 

ensure the success of i t s mission. Referring to the s t a t i s t i c s provided hy the 
observer f o r Israel on the land expropriated f o r the establishment of settlements 
and on the Jewish population i n the occupied t e r r i t o r i e s , he said that the 
Special Committee would l i k e to v e r i f y those data on the spot. He asked the 
observer f o r Israel to transmit that s p e c i f i c request to his Government or to 
reply c l e a r l y and unequivocally. 

83. Mr. KHOURI (Palestine Liberation Organization) noted that the observer for 
Israel had denied that the Palestinians had the ri g h t to l i v e f r e e l y i n Palestine 
and to exercise the right to self-determination there. The position of his 
Government was that, since there were 21 Arab countries, there would be s u f f i c i e n t 
room for the Jewish s e t t l e r s . Israel did not wish to cast doubt on i t s 
sovereignty over the t e r r i t o r i e s v/hich i t had occupied since IÇô?? despite the fact 
that there v/ere hundreds of thousands of Palestinians i n those t e r r i t o r i e s . The 
Palestinians had l i v e d there f o r centuries. Justice and the law d.emanded s e l f -
determination f o r that Palestinian population and, i n that connection, the acrobatics 
of Israel viould have no influence on the Coimission. 

The meeting rose at 3»35 P.m. 




